
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
           JULY 5, 2016 

                     TUESDAY, 6:30 P.M. 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL WILL HOLD A WORKSHOP TO DISCUSS (1) TIGER POINT GOLF 
COURSE AND (2) THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PENSACOLA BAY BRIDGE AT 5:30 P.M.  
THE REGULAR MEETING WILL BEGIN AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE WORKSHOP. 
 
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

June 15, 2016, Budget Workshop meeting 
June 20, 2016, Regular meeting  
  

3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
  

4. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A Public Hearing to seek input for establishing a FEMA Alternate Project in lieu of rebuilding the 
Tiger Point West Course bunkers 
 

5. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
   
Ordinance No. 05-16  Deleting Section 9(A) of the Municipal Charter and Amending 

Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinances relative to the qualifying 
deadline for Municipal Elections. 

      (SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Resolution No. 15-16  Approving a Plan of Finance for the Lady Lake Senior Living 

Facility and the Issuance of up to $46,000,000 in Capital Trust 
Agency Bonds and Authorizing the Mayor to enter into 
Amendment No. 68 to Interlocal Agreement 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Approval of repair and/or replacement of cameras on City wide surveillance camera system  
 

B. Approval of funding to continue increased police presence on Gulf Breeze Parkway 
 

C. Approval to purchase 23 body worn cameras from Watch Guard 
 

D. Authorization to change traffic signal at the rear of Gulf Breeze High School and the signal in 
front of Gulf Breeze Middle School on Hwy 98 to flash during extended hours in the Summer 

  
E. Approval of South Santa Rosa Board Recommendations: 



Regular Meeting Agenda 
July 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 
3. Centrifuge 12,000 Hour Service 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize Andritz to 
perform the 12,000 hour overhaul. 
 

4. Award of Bid for Construction of 300,000 gallon Elevated Reclaim Tank 
 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council award the Elevated 
Reclaim Tank bid to Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors Inc. for $1,128,906 with North 
West Florida Water Management District (NWFWMD) Grant funding $345,500 and the 
balance of $783,406 be paid from the South Santa Rosa Utility Service tap fee reserves 
 

5. Purchase of one (1) Ford Super Duty F-250 Truck 
 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize the 
purchase of one (1) Ford Super Duty F-250 CNG Truck from Hub City Ford 
 

F. Approval to pay invoices 96052 and 96053 for a total of amount of $5,877.58 to Smolker, 
Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A.  

 
G. Approval to pay invoice 331984 in the amount of $4,133.97 to Galloway /Johnson- Tompkins 

Burr and Smith (GJTBS) 
 

*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 
7. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A. Approval of South Santa Rosa Board Recommendations: 

 
1. Soundside/Oak Drive Sewer Improvement Project 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize the 
construction and expenditure of the estimated $206,896 to be paid from the South Santa 
Rosa Utility Service tap fee reserves to construct approximately 7,200’ of 4” forcemain 
on Soundside and Oak Drive, and implement an aid in construction fee of $828 for each 
home that connects to the system. 



Regular Meeting Agenda 
July 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 

If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or public hearing, such person may need 
to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The 
public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition from the Chair.   If you are a person with a disability 
who needs accommodation in order to participate in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City Clerk’s 
office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 

 
2. West Course Front Nine (9) Irrigation Renovation Cost Evaluation 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize staff to 
prepare a Request for Proposal for irrigation of the West Golf Course  
 

B. Discussion of Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation for Transfer of Right-
of-Way and Temporary Construction Easement – Replacement of Pensacola Bay Bridge 

 
8. NEW ITEMS  

 
9. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
10. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
       



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Workshop	Meeting	Minutes																											 	June	15,	2016	 Page	1	
 

A budget workshop of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at Gulf Breeze 
City Hall on Wednesday, June 15, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. (Note:  The budget workshop was held prior to 
the Executive Session meeting of the same date.  Following the workshop, the Executive Session was 
commenced.)   
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Bookout, 
Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Councilman David G. Landfair, and 
Mayor Matt Dannheisser.   
 

1. BUDGET:   The following departmental budgets were discussed: Administrative (Edwin 
Eddy); Police Department (Chief Robert Randle); Community Services (Craig Carmichael); 
Fire Department (Fire Chief Craig Carmichael); Streets and Natural Gas (Vernon Prather). 

Items the Council would like to see implemented in Fiscal Year 2017: 
 

 Providing verbatim minutes and adding meeting recordings on City website   
 Access to City financials on City website 
 Improved communications in regards to the traffic difficulties on the Bay Bridge in conjunction 

with the Pensacola Police Department     
 Five Year Capital Plan for each department 
 Plan to identify what is surplus property and reuse sites. Determine how to maximize effluent 

disposable on the golf course.    

The Mayor suspended the workshop and called for a five minute break at 5:57 p.m.  
  

Mayor Dannheisser reconvened the workshop at 6:01 p.m.  
 
2. PENSACOLA BAY BRIDGE:   The City Council discussed the proposed agreement with the 

Florida Department of Transportation for transfer of right-of-way and temporary construction 
easement in regards to replacement of the Pensacola Bay Bridge. 

Tommy Barfield, Secretary District III, Florida Department of Transportation District attended the 
meeting and addressed the Council and answered questions regarding the issue. 
 
Kerrie Harrell, District Consultant Project Management Engineer, Florida Department of 
Transportation, addressed the Council and answered questions regarding the issue. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:      Rodney Rich, 1 Beach Drive, Gulf Breeze, questioned Secretary Barfield 
regarding condemnation of land.   

 
ADJOURNMENT:      Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the special meeting at 7:42 p.m.  

 
  
 
 
 

 

 
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor   



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											June	20,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The 1,297th Regular Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Monday, June 20, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present:  Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, 
Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser. Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout attended by phone. Councilman David G. Landfair was not in attendance. 
 
The City Clerk gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the June 6, 2016, Regular meeting minutes.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the June 6, 2016, CRA meeting minutes.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous. 
 
PRESENTATION AND PROCLAMATIONS:    
 
Eric Holmes was recognized by the Chief of Police and the City Council for his efforts in 
helping apprehend a hit and run driver on May 29, 2016.  Chief Randle read the commendation 
and congratulated Mr. Holmes on a job well done. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

A Public Hearing to consider a variance request by Mateer Property, LLC, from the 
Community Redevelopment Area (CRA) design standards for a proposed professional 
office building to be constructed at 67 Baybridge Drive, Gulf Breeze, FL 32561. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser opened the Public Hearing at 6:41 p.m.  Having received no 
comments, the Mayor closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved to approve Mateer Properties, LLC’s variance request to 
waive the CRA design standards stipulated in Chapter 26 of the City’s Land 
Development Code.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											June	20,	2016	 Page	2	
 

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   
 

Ordinance No. 05-16  Deleting Section 9(A) of the Municipal Charter and 
Amending Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the qualifying deadline for Municipal Elections. 

        (FIRST READING) 
 
The City Clerk read the ordinance by title. Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of 
Ordinance No. 05-16 and to hold a Public Hearing and Second Reading on July 5, 2016.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S): 
 

A.  Approval of Development Review Board Recommendations: 
 

1. Our Gang, LLC 
Request to develop new subdivision located at 
113 Navarre Street and 410 Warwick Street 
 

2. Northern Horizons, LLC  
Request to expand parking lot at  
33 Gulf Breeze Parkway (The Bridge Bar) 

B. Award of bid for Landscape Architecture Design Services  
 
Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated June 8, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council direct staff to negotiate a contract with WAS 
Designs to develop conceptual plans for the installation of landscape beds within the 
grass median of US 98 right-of-ways in this section. 

 
C. Approval to establish a FEMA Alternative Project, West Golf Course Bunkers 

 
Reference: Operations Consultant memo dated May 27, 2016 

Recommendation: That the City Council schedule one (1) Public Hearing to seek 
input for establishing a FEMA Alternative Project instead of rebuilding the Tiger Point 
West Course bunkers. 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											June	20,	2016	 Page	3	
 

D. Approval of time extension for the Northwest Florida Water Management District Grant 
 
Reference: That the City Council approve the time extension to the    
 
Recommendation:   That the City Council approve the time extension to the Northwest 
Florida Water Management District Grant and authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment 
No. 1 on behalf of the City. 
   

E. Authorization to remove glass from the list of recyclables in the City’s contract with 
Allied Waste 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated June 10, 2016  
 
Recommendation: That the City Council agree to drop glass from the list of 
recyclables in the City’s contract with Allied Waste.  

 
F. Approval of an engagement agreement with Bryant, Miller Olive P.A., to assist with 

litigation involving the City’s 1985 loan program 
 
Reference: Mayor verbal report and copy of engagement agreement 
 
Recommendation: That the City council enter into an engagement agreement with 
Bryant, Miller Olive P.A., and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

 
G. Approval of an engagement agreement with Jenner & Block to assist City in regards to 

possible litigation involving the SLGS program for investments 
 
Reference: Mayor verbal report and copy of engagement agreement 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council enter into an engagement agreement with the 
Law Firm of Jenner & Brock and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

 
Councilman Henderson made a motion to approve consent agenda items A through G.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS:    None 

 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											June	20,	2016	 Page	4	
 

NEW BUSINESS:   
 

A. Conceptual approval to enter into an agreement for the amount of $2.2 Million with 
Florida Department of Transportation for transfer of right-of-way and temporary 
construction easement for replacement of the Pensacola Bay Bridge. 
 
Reference: Verbal report by Mayor Dannheisser and proposed draft of agreement   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to table action on this subject until the next set 
of meetings.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS:  None 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:      
 
Jim Cox, 423 Williamsburg; Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid, and Tom Naile, 112 Winter Place; 
addressed the Council regarding the proposed agreement with FDOT.     
 
Tom Naile, 112 Windsor Place, spoke during the public forum to notify the Council that he 
received a letter advising of a meeting on July 7th at the Community Center.  The letter is from 
the Engle group who are interested in building an apartment building in the City.  Mayor 
Dannheisser stated for the record that the City nor its staff had any involvement in this meeting 
nor does the City plan to participate. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: None 

  
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:12 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk    Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JUNE 29, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							JUNE	29,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on Wednesday, 
June 29, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, 
Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, Councilman David G. 
Landfair, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:  None 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 

 
A. Discussion regarding the condition of Tiger Point East Golf Course  

 
Reference: City Manager memo dated June 23, 2016 
 
The City Manager advised that Gene Garrote with Integrity Golf will attend the City 
Council's July 5, 2016, Regular meeting to discuss Tiger Point Golf Course.  The Council 
will hold a workshop on July 5, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. to discuss this item.   
 
No action was taken. 

 
B. Approval to hold a Public Hearing on July 5, 2016, to seek input for establishing a FEMA 

Alternate Project in lieu of rebuilding the Tiger Point West Course bunkers 
 
 Reference: Operations Consultant memo dated May 27, 2016 
 

Recommendation:   That the City Council schedule two (2) public hearings to seek input 
for establishing a FEMA Alternate Project instead of rebuilding the Tiger Point West 
Course bunkers.  

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to hold the first Public Hearing on July 5, 2016.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

C. Approval of Ordinance 05-16, amending the deadline for qualification of candidate 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated June 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council hold a public hearing on Tuesday, July 5, 
2016, and approve Ordinance 05-16 on second and final reading.   
   

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to hold a public hearing and second reading of 
Ordinance No. 05-16 on Tuesday, July 5, 2016.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for 
approval was unanimous.   

 
D. Approval of repair and/or replacement of cameras on City wide surveillance camera system  



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JUNE 29, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							JUNE	29,	2016	 Page	2	
 

 
 Reference: Chief of Police memo dated June 17, 2016 
  

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the repair and/or purchase of the 
surveillance camera equipment and their installation.  Funding of this project is to come 
from the Red Light Camera program. 

 
Council Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
E.  Approval of funding to continue increased police presence on Gulf Breeze Parkway  

 
Reference: City Manager memo dated June 22, 2016   
 
Recommendation:   That the City Council authorize the transfer of $10,000 from the 
Red Light Camera fund to sustain the increased police patrol of Gulf Breeze Parkway and 
the Bay Bridge to the end of the fiscal year.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda. Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

F. Approval to purchase 23 body worn cameras from Watch Guard  
 

Reference: Chief of Police memo dated June 23, 2016  
 
 Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the purchase of twenty-three body 
worn cameras from Watch Guard.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the July 5, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

G. Authorization to change traffic signal at the rear of Gulf Breeze High School and the signal 
in front of Gulf Breeze Middle School on Highway 98 to flash during extended hours in 
the Summer  
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated June 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council direct staff to place the signal at the rear of Gulf 
Breeze High School on flash mode from 6:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. and the signal at Gulf 
Breeze Middle School and Gulf Breeze Parkway on flash mode from 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. 
and 24 hours per day on Saturday and Sunday until the week before the 2016-2017 school 
year begins. 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
  



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JUNE 29, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							JUNE	29,	2016	 Page	3	
 

H. Approval of South Santa Rosa Board Recommendations: 
  
 Reference: Operations Consultant memo dated June 20, 2016 

 
1. Soundside/Oak Drive Sewer Improvement Project 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize the 
construction and expenditure of the estimated $206,896 to be paid from the South 
Santa Rosa Utility Service tap fee reserves to construct approximately 7,200’ of 4” 
forcemain on Soundside and Oak Drive, and implement an aid in construction fee 
of $828 for each home that connects to the system. 
 
John Frew, 20 Gilmore Drive, Gulf Breeze, and Tom Naile, as Chairman of the 
South Santa Rosa Utility System Board, spoke about this item.   
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 3-2 with 
Mayor Dannheisser and Mayor Pro Tem Henderson dissenting.   

 
2. West Course Front Nine (9) Irrigation Renovation Cost Evaluation 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize staff 
to prepare a Request for Proposal for irrigation of the West Golf Course  
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 4-1 with Mayor 
Pro Tem Henderson dissenting. 

 
3. Centrifuge 12,000 Hour Service 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize 
Andritz to perform the 12,000 hour overhaul. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
4. Award of Bid for Construction of 300,000 gallon Elevated Reclaim Tank 

 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council award the 
Elevated Reclaim Tank bid to Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors Inc. for $1,128,906 
with North West Florida Water Management District (NWFWMD) Grant funding 
$345,500 and the balance of $783,406 be paid from the South Santa Rosa Utility 
Service tap fee reserves 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JUNE 29, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							JUNE	29,	2016	 Page	4	
 

5. Purchase of one (1) Ford Super Duty F-250 Truck 
 
Recommendation: SSRUS Board recommends that the City Council authorize the 
purchase of one (1) Ford Super Duty F-250 CNG Truck from Hub City Ford 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous.   
 

I. Approval to pay invoices 96052 and 96053 for a total of amount of $5,877.58 to Smolker, 
Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. and that the City Council meet as the Board of 
Directors of the CRA on July 5, 2016, and authorize the payment of invoices 96051 and 
96054 for a total amount of $2,245.57 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. 

 
 Reference:  City Manager memo dated June 23, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve payment of invoices 96052 and 
96053 for a total amount of $5,877.58 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard, 
P.A. AND 

 
That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the CRA on July 5, 2016, and 
authorize payment of invoices 96051 and 96054 in the amount of $2,245.57 to Smolker, 
Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard, P.A. 

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

J. Approval to pay invoice 331984 in the amount of $4,133.97 to Galloway/Johnson- 
Tompkins Burr and Smith (GJTBS) 

 
 Reference:   City Clerk memo dated June 23, 2016 
 
 The City Attorney provided an update on the lawsuit.    
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve payment of invoice no. 331984 in the 
amount of $4,133.97 to Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith. 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the July 5, 2016, Regular 
meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
K. Discussion of Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation for Transfer of 

Right-of-Way and Temporary Construction Easement – Replacement of Pensacola Bay 
Bridge 

 
 Reference: City Manager memo dated June 23, 2016 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JUNE 29, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							JUNE	29,	2016	 Page	5	
 

The City Manager advised that the latest versions of the agreement and easement had been 
sent to the Council via email and copies were provided before the meeting.  The Council 
discussed the documents and FDOT procedures for obtaining the subject properties. 

  
Mary Beth Washnock with the West Florida Regional Planning Council advised the 
Council that a special meeting has not been schedule and she would let the Council know 
once they know. 

 
Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to not approve the agreement with the Florida Department 
of Transportation and to place the matter on the July 5, 2016, Regular meeting agenda for final 
discussion.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.  
 
NEW ITEMS:   None  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: None  
 
 PUBLIC FORUM:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 
 



















ORDINANCE NO. 05-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, AMENDING DELETING SECTION 
9(A) OF THE MUNICIPAL CHARTER AND AMENDING 
SECTION 2-1 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATIVE TO 
THE QUALIFYING DEADLINE FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Rosa County Supervisor of Elections provides election 

administration services for the City pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement; and, 
 
Whereas, the Supervisor of Elections publishes the time and place(s) of all 

elections in the City as part of the interlocal agreement; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Supervisor of Elections advised the City that its current 
qualifying period for election does not provide the Elections' Office sufficient time to 
perform all necessary requirements prior to Election Day; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Florida Statutes Section 100.3605 allows a municipality to amend 

the dates for qualifying for election by ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Gulf Breeze, Florida, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1:  Section 9 (a) of the City's Charter is hereby amended as 
follows:deleted in its entirety. 

 

Section 9.  Elections. 
 

(a) The council shall provide by ordinance the method of holding all elections and 
shall require publication of notice of the time and place of all elections, such publication 
to be by posting in three (3) conspicuous places not less than thirty (30) days prior to the 
date of holding the election. Such notice shall specify the polling place or places and shall 
also name the inspectors and clerks. The city council may divide the city into precincts 
and provide separate voting places for the different precincts. 

 

SECTION 2: Section 2-1 of the City's Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as 
follows: 

 

Section 2-1.  Deadline for qualification of candidate. 
 

The deadline for qualifying to become a candidate in any municipal election for 
Mayor and City Council shall be 12:00 PM Noon on the Friday preceding Labor Day. 
sixty-six (66) days before the election. A candidate nominating petition as required by 
Section 9(b) of the City's Charter must be filed with the City Clerk at the open of 
business on the first Monday of August and end at 12:00 PM Noon on the Friday 
preceding Labor Day.  not more than ninety-five (95) days and no less than sixty-six (66) 
days before the date of the election. 



ORDINANCE NO.  05-16 
Page 2 of 2 

 
SECTION 3: SEVERABILITY 

 

If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held by any court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, invalid, or void, such holding shall 
not in any manner affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 4: CONFLICT 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to control and prevail over any 
ordinance, charter provision, or portion thereof in conflict with the terms hereof. 

 
SECTION 5: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council. 
 
PASSED ON THE FIRST READING ON THE 20TH DAY OF JUNE, 2016. 

ADVERTISED ON THE 23RD OF JUNE, 2016. 

PASSED ON THE SECOND READING ON THE DAY OF JULY, 2016. 
 

CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 
 
 

By:    
Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 

 

 
 

Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk or 
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 
































































	July 5 2016 Regular Meeting
	June 15 2016 Budget Workshop Special Meeting
	June 20 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	June 29 2016 Executive Meeting Minutes
	FEMA Alternate Project Tiger Point West Course Bunkers 06 2016 
	Ordinance 05 - 16 Amending Qualifying Period
	Ordinance  05 16 Election Deadline Labor Day Weekend.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 05-16
	Section 9.  Elections.
	Section 2-1.  Deadline for qualification of candidate.
	ORDINANCE NO.  05-16
	SECTION 4: CONFLICT
	SECTION 5: EFFECTIVE DATE


	CTA Lady Lake Senior Living 06 30 2016
	SSRUS Board Recommendations 06 20 169



